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Foreword
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Within Moreton Bay lie many small islands, protected by the large barrier islands of Moreton and North and South Stradbroke. Some of these small islands are inhabited, with thriving communities, while others only appear at low tide, being little more than mangroves and mud. Even so, these mud islands are vitally important for the continued health of the waters and wildlife of Moreton Bay. The village islands of Russell, Karragarra, Lamb and Macleay are known collectively as the Southern Moreton Bay Islands.

In 1842, when the Moreton Bay Penal Colony was closed, Brisbane and its surrounds were opened up to free settlement. Primary industries such as timber cutting, fishing and oyster farming flourished and were integral to the economic development of Southeast Queensland. Until the early 1970s, fruit and vegetable production and fishing supported the small Island communities. In the early years, the Islands’ isolation and complete lack of facilities fostered a strong community spirit of self-reliance, volunteering and care for others. Controversial subdivisions began in the late 1960s, and, in 1973, the Redland Shire Council (now Redland City Council) was granted control of the Bay Islands by the State Government.

A History of the Bay Islands is a chronological record of Island events to 2014 and is the first volume in the series, Histories of the Bay Islands, Moreton Bay.
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Early History
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Russell, Karragarra, Lamb and Macleay Islands are bedrock islands composed of rock up to 300 million years old. For much of the time, the islands have been part of the mainland, as a ridge of minor hills. The hills only became separated from the mainland during interglacial periods, such as we are experiencing now. During the last 200,000 years, Moreton Bay has emptied, probably, seven times, has refilled partially, four times, and filled to present day levels twice. The sea level last reached its present height about 6500 years ago.

In centuries past, Moreton Bay supported several Aboriginal tribes, who called the area Quandamooka. The formation of the Bay Islands is told in an Aboriginal Dreamtime story. The ancestors of the land, sea and air creatures were involved in a great battle somewhere between Canaipa Point on Russell, and the Logan River mouth. A goanna leading the land creatures was carrying a spear (kanaipa). A hawk swooped down and snatched the spear. He drove it into the back of a porpoise, who blew it out with a mighty blast. The resulting flood of water and blood flowed across the countryside, creating the islands, swamps, creeks and channels of Southern Moreton Bay.
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Dreamtime by Jan Rybinski.

From Bay Islands: The Living Splendour of Moreton Bay by Enid Rowe, 1991.

There are several midden sites on the Islands, including those on Corroboree Park and Point Perrebinpa, Macleay Island, and on Canaipa Point, Russell Island. These indicate a prolific supply of shellfish and an extensive period of its use as food. However, unlike Stradbroke Island, the Bay Islands do not appear to have been permanently inhabited by Aboriginals. They were visited for specific purposes only. A scar tree near Corroboree Park has been included in the Queensland State Heritage Register as a significant item of Aboriginal heritage and is, therefore, protected. The shape of the scar indicates that the tree’s bark may have been used to make a canoe.
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The 1800s
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1799

Matthew Flinders sailed from Sydney in the Norfolk to locate the river reputed to flow into Moreton Bay. He sailed as far south as Coochiemudlo Island. His maps show the area now known as Potts Point, on Macleay Island. Matthew Flinders’ Day is celebrated on Coochiemudlo each year, in July.

1822

The need for a new penal colony kindled interest in the area, and several ships were sent from Sydney to explore. The mangrove islands, mudflats, sandbanks, and fast-flowing tides made navigation difficult. John Oxley, onboard the Mermaid, discovered the mouth of the Brisbane River, and in 1824, returned in the brig Amity to establish the Moreton Bay Penal settlement. Convicts were used as labourers, particularly as timber cutters. Blackbutt, white cedar, tallowwood, cypress and red gum covered the Bay Islands. The timber was of outstanding quality and in much demand for the growing Sydney and Brisbane colonies. Logs were dragged to rafting grounds (such as those on the west side of Perulpa Bay and at Thompsons Point, Macleay, and the Russell Island jetty area), snigged into large, loose rafts and towed to sawmills on the mainland, initially by rowing boats.

1834

Tim Shea, a convicted murderer and assigned timber-getter, escaped from a work party on Dunwich. For fourteen years, he lived a hermit-like life on Macleay and Karragarra Islands. Shea was unaware that his Certificate of Freedom had been granted in 1836. Both islands were later known informally as Tim Shea’s Islands. Tim Shea’s Wetlands on Macleay are named after him, as he is believed to have spent much time there because of the permanent supply of fresh water.

1842

The Penal Colony was closed. Brisbane and Moreton Bay were opened to free settlers, and a period of rapid growth commenced.

Robert Dixon, the Government Surveyor, was commissioned to survey and map the coast of Moreton Bay. He marked the first trigonometric point on Macleay Island (near today’s Progress Hall). Dixon’s map showed Karragarra, Russell and Macleay Islands, but failed to separate Macleay and Lamb Islands.
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Robert Dixon’s map, 1842. Note that Coochiemudlo Island was initially named Innes Island. Cleveland was expected to become a major port.

Courtesy of the John Oxley Library.

1840s to 1850s

Macleay Island was named after Alexander Macleay (1767 – 1848), who was a naturalist and the colonial administrator. After his death, his extensive collection was donated by his family to the University of Sydney. Macleay Island’s Aboriginal name is Jencoomercha, meaning “a meeting place of spiritual importance”.

Tiny Perulpa Island is now connected to Macleay by a causeway. Perulpa is an Aboriginal word meaning “an island off an island”.

Lamb Island may have been named after John Lamb (1790 – 1862), a wealthy businessman and member of the New South Wales (NSW) Legislative Council between 1844 and 1861. Lamb Island’s Aboriginal name is Ngudooroo, meaning “resting place”, “place of many paperbarks”, or “place of shade and shadow”.

Russell Island’s Aboriginal name is Kanarta or Canaipa, meaning “many sharp spears” or “place of spears”. In the past, Aboriginals visited Russell to collect thin black wattle saplings. These grew prolifically at Canaipa Point and were used to make spears. Russell was spelled “Russel” in earlier maps. It was named by surveyor James Warner after either:


	1st Earl, Lord John Russell, statesman and politician, Secretary of State for the Colonies in the 1840s and British Prime Minister from 1846–52, and 
1865–6; or

	Member of Parliament, Henry Stuart Russell (1818–89), who, in 1842, explored the coast of southern Queensland in a whaleboat. He was a prominent figure who left his name to other points along the coast.



Karragarra has kept its Aboriginal name, which means “long, smooth wood”. It was known for a short time as Rabbit Island because Chinese workers bred rabbits there to sell as meat to the oystermen.

Timber clearing opened up land for the cultivation of exportable crops such as sugar and cotton, but the cessation of convict labour caused a labour shortage. From 1844, Indian and Chinese coolies and Kanakas were employed as indentured labourers to keep the plantations viable. Logging continued by the efforts of ticket-of-leave men and free settlers. Many of the early timber men were also oyster collectors. The oyster beds surrounding the Bay Islands formed the basis of a most profitable industry. From 1824 to 1863, the primary purpose of oyster gathering was to manufacture lime to make mortar for buildings. Lime production required the shell to be burnt. Demand was great due to the building boom associated with the rapid expansion of the young settlement. Many oystermen lived in seasonal camps around the Bay, burning the shell as they gathered it. Initially, Aboriginal middens were used as a source of oyster shell. John Clowes and Edward Routledge were two of the earliest lime-burners in the Redlands, with camps on Russell in the 1850s.

1859

Land on the Bay Islands was advertised for sale for cotton growing. However, the sale was cancelled due to the approaching separation of the new state of Queensland from NSW.

1861

The Queensland Government passed regulations regarding the cultivation of cotton, and there was a short-lived cotton boom in the area. The pioneer and adventurer, John “Tinker” Campbell, was one who applied for land on which to grow cotton. The Campbell family was amongst the earliest settlers on the Bay Islands.
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John Campbell,1865.

Courtesy of the John Oxley Library.

In its first subdivision, Macleay Island was divided into three and taken up by Campbell’s children. Campbell also leased land on Russell. He employed Kanaka labourers to grow sugar and cotton. The Campbell family lived on Macleay above Pininpinin Point. They were involved with oystering and fishing, and experimented unsuccessfully with castor oil and coffee production, breeding angora goats, and sponge collecting. “Tinker” Campbell was known as “Never to be Beaten Campbell” for his enormous energy, ability to adjust to circumstance and initiative in business.​[1]

The settlers built jetties, wharfs and rafting grounds to facilitate the removal of timber, cotton, sugar and other Island products, and the delivery of supplies and equipment. The first jetty at Kibbinkibbinwa Point, on Russell, was built from local timber in 1865, by Campbell’s Kanaka labourers. Campbell’s Kanaka Wharf, at Thompsons Point, Macleay, dates from the same year. It was the main rafting ground for the Island and is believed to be the oldest Kanaka structure still existing in Queensland. Campbell’s Salt Works, at Pininpinin Point, Macleay, are one of the most important cultural heritage sites of State significance on the Bay Islands. Some historians believe that the Salt Works was actually a rum distillery.
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